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The Town of Danville is fortunate to have two very special parcels of land that are a direct link to the lives of the early residents who helped establish this community in 1760. 

When our country was being settled there were several British requirements for approval of an independent community: a minister to preach, a place to worship and provision for the children’s education.  Settlers were also required to set off community lands, called “Parsonage Land”, to help support the ministry.  When the “Parish of Hawke” (as Danville was then known) entered into negotiations with Kingston to break off and become independent, one of the conditions in their “Articles of Agreement” was that Hawke would receive part of the “Parsonage Land” already in Kingston.  The Hawke settlers were not happy with that, however, because it was too far and the land was not in their community.  A committee of Hawke settlers was soon appointed to buy new parsonage land that would be closer to the center of their own little community.  Their efforts resulted in the Town’s purchase of two “Parsonage Lots” totaling 77 acres that are still owned by the Town today.  One lot is beside and behind “Ye Old Cemetery” on Main Street.  The other lot runs south from Happy Hollow Road toward the Meeting House.  After the new Parsonage Lots had been purchased, Hawke’s early settlers sold their share of the Kingston parsonage land back to Kingston.  They probably used the proceeds to continue efforts to create and solidify their new parish center, which is still evidenced today in the Meeting House, Ye Olde Cemetery, the Parsonage Residence and of course, the nearby “Parsonage Lots.”  Early records indicate Danville’s Meeting House was built from timber cut from the Parsonage Land.  

Record-keeping for the activities, income and disbursements from the Parsonage Lots became essential.  In 1790 the new parish voted to establish a “Parsonage Committee” to oversee these purposes and keep precise records and journals.  Since then the records of the Town’s Parsonage Committees have been meticulously kept, stored and safe-guarded for more than 200 years.  These records are a treasure trove of information about how this land was managed and what it brought to the Town.  Rights to selectively cut timber were sold by bid.  The cleared land was sown with seed for sale of haying rights until trees were again large enough for cutting.  The community profited from the income derived from these activities.  Funds were used for various community purposes, including maintenance and repair of the Meeting House.  Until separation of church and state, every registered town voter was entitled to a share of the forest proceeds and could designate the religious sect to which the share was to be paid.  Because of these forestry activities, the Parsonage Lots were also called “the town forest.”

Danville’s “Parsonage Lots” have sometimes caught the attention of the media.  One written article referred to the land as the oldest town forest in the country.  Danville’s “forest” was once mentioned in a Reader’s Digest article which reported “the town has operated 77 acres of forest land almost from its settlement in 1760…the returns have been used for the support of the minister and the parish.”  In a 1938 radio interview about town forests on the National Farm and Home Hour, the then Chief of the U.S. Forest Service said town forests were managed for many community benefits—places to go, fishing and income.  He gave Danville, New Hampshire as an example of a New England town that derived income from its forest.  

Danville is one of only a few communities that has retained its Parsonage Lands.  Many communities have sold their Parsonage Land or converted it to some other use.  Danville’s Main Street Parsonage Lot is now part of the Town’s historic district to ensure that its historical importance will never be lost.  Danville’s “Parsonage Lots” represent more than 200 years of community management and dedication for this special land.  Though timber cutting and haying have declined, these special parcels of land continue to remain available for the enjoyment and benefit of the townspeople.
